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FY 2006 BUDGET (C.c. 04-287, C.C. 05-19, and C.c. 05-63)

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for. .. Thursday, excuse me, yes ... Thursday, April 21 st.. .I believe is
the date today, Members .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: ... 2005. For the record, we have all Members of the Committee present for
this afternoon's session. Members ...this afternoon, the first thing, we're gonna take care
of is our...public testimony phase of this meeting. With that, first--before we move any
further, if you have a cell phone or a pager... for anybody here in the Chambers, if you
can, please it to, tum it to the off or to the silent mode, and that way we can avoid any
unnecessary distractions to the meeting. We will be providing you with a total of four
minutes. At three minutes ...we will notify you of the third, of that three minutes, and
then we'll give you another minute to close up your comments. And at four minutes, if
you can hang on once you've finished your comments, and if there's any questions to
clarify your, your ... comments to the body, we'll. .. make sure those questions are asked.
Please state your name for the record. And if you represent an organization, we'd like to
know that as well. We have ... five people so far signed up to testify. The first person
signed up is Mr. Don Becker. And Mr. Becker will be followed by Morrow Bagda.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. BECKER: ... Hi, my name is Don Becker and ...happy to ... be able to speak to you guys
here. My letter begins with Dear Budget Committee, County of Maui Council Members.
What we have here is a busting out of the seams, motorists cutting our town using any
convenient way--I'm speaking about Kihei, by the way--using any convenient way. So
now these once-designed little lower residential roads are now being used as major
thoroughfares. This is about roads that are in South Kihei. This particular road I'm
discussing is called Kanani Road. It is now become a very dangerous road--starting at
the intersection of Piilani Highway at Kanani Road. I would also like to begin with the
fact that we all know there has been a tremendous addition of people and traffic added to
South Maui since the inception of the sleepy little connector roads. Remembering,
remembering way back when in the '70s when most of these roads were designed in
South Kihei, were only dirt roads barely being traveled on, and most not even going
through. These, this road is a narrow 20-mile-an-hour road that connects South Kihei,
that connects to South Kihei Road from Piilani Highway. It is now totally worn out. The
-2-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 21, 2005

road is crumbling away and in such disrepair. Because... because it is being used by
most motor, motorists entering the busiest part of South Kihei--the Kalama Park, Cove
Park area. This particular road, since its inception, has never been changed at all. It was
designed and construed wrong in a lot of parts from its inception over 20, over 35 years
ago when nobody hardly used this road. The--and really needs to be modernized to
today's standards. It is so far behind, I have spoken to the ...the Kihei Police Department
on numerous occasions about this road, and they totally agree. It was never designed for
the amount of traffic it gets today, let alone in the new future. Vehicles are coming off
the highway and then still continuing to speed off the highway and not stop at a very
important stop intersection below Piilani Highway. And this causes havoc. Everyone
agrees the design of this intersection was absolutely designed wrong. Now there are
plans in State to install traffic signal at that intersection--at Piilani and Kanai--in a little
over a month from now, June of 2005. I've checked, and there are no other plans at all
with the County of Maui, Public Works, to do any improvements to this particular
intersection in the future. This is incomprehensible. The intersection is already being
used way over what it was designed for, let alone with additional traffic, with an
additional traffic signal.
There was a traffic study done there on this road by the County and the results needed to
be taken twice because they thought they had make an, made a mistake with the amount
of traffic reported. I've also done some research, and there are even more planned
additions, believe me, more traffic for this location in the near future. So now is the
time, it's so important to design this road to make everything all work together. These
are the future plans of that particular location--a traffic signal in 2005; another traffic
signal at the other end of Piilani Highway and Kanani, which is South Kihei Road,
another traffic signal will be installed there.
MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MR. BECKER: Hundreds of condos are being built on Kanani as we speak, and they will be
completed in the next couple months. Additional. .. hundreds of condos planned below
the Kalama Heights retirement home. This is a very important intersection entering our
town of Kihei that was totally configured wrong from its inception. It is very dangerous
and the majority motorists use this road to access our town. It is ugly ... {inaudible} . ..
disrepair and haphazardly designed in the past with many idiosyncrasies. Urn...please
come by and view this, this location if you're not, if you've not driven on it. I've met
with County Public Works, Mike Miyamoto and the Traffic Engineer, Joe Krueger. And
they say that it'll take 100,000 dollars to have a traffic consultant engineer hired to do an
assessment about the negative impact of this signal and design an alternative plan design
guideline. We gratefully thank Maui County Budget Committee Council Members for
assisting us and our neighbors in solving this very important. ..problem that demands
attention now. I'm all-MS. KAWASAKI: Four minutes.
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MR. BECKER: I'm also on the County or the KCA Board. I'm on their. .. I'm a Board Member
and ...we discussed this on numerous occasions and we really feel this is an important
subject that everybody needs to know about. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Becker.
Ms. Anderson?

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, just one quick question. Thank you, Don, for
coming. You spoke with Public Works. Have you ...have you spoken with the Planning
Department regarding these new condominiums that are coming on line to see if they
have any traffic, traffic mitigation for this roadway?
MR. BECKER: I have. And they, what they're doing is they're putting, they're gonna pay for
the signal on South Kihei Road and Piilani. That's all they're doing. They're not
improving the road at all.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the signal's being paid entirely by the developers?
MR. BECKER: I'm not sure exactly how much of that or ifit's all being paid, but I was told that
they are, that's... what was, that was their mitigation for building that structure
which...they didn't really go through Kihei Community Association at all. So we were
not even aware that, of what they were doing or how they were doing it at the time. This
is when I first got involved with KCA.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Don.
MR. BECKER: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And-CHAIR KANE: Any further question--I'm sorry. I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're gonna provide written, your written testimony for
us?
MR. BECKER: I did. And I guess she'll make some copies. I only brought eight, and I guess
you need 18 or something.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. BECKER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members?
... If not, thank you for your testimony.
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MR. BECKER: Thank you very much, everybody.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify, Mr. Morrow Bagda. He'll be followed by Brian Klaschka.
MR. BAGDA: ... Good afternoon, Chairman Kane, Members of the Council. My name is
Morrow Badga, I live in Kuau, Maui. And I serve as an Executive Member of the
COMET organization. I'm gonna testify today on three of the items on your agenda.
They are items number 9, 10, and 11. And I will provide my testimony in that numerical
order. During 2003, this Council held hearings in this room for increasing the County's
fuel tax by five percent, five cents. I testified, at that time, against that raise. However,
the Council went ahead and they passed the bill.
· .. My reason for testifying then ... and the same is today .. .is not for myself, but for the
working men and women who have to use their vehicles to get back and forth from work.
I have a vivid memory from when I returned serving, after serving in the U. S. Marine
Corps and my employment with Pacific Telephone .. .in California. I had to drive back
and forth from this job, spending three hours on the road, needing to fill my gas tank at
· .. (laughter) . .. a couple times a week each week didn't help conserve the precious
dollars which...were pretty hard and few to come by in that time. Of course, the price of
gasoline was much, much less than it is today. But. .. so were the wages. So you can
appreciate that I have a lot of empathy for the Maui folks that find themselves in
somewhat the same situation that I was in some 60 years ago. So, Members of the
Council, you have any opportunity... you have an opportunity...to do something about
that five cents that was placed as a fuel tax and raising the fuel tax from 13 to 18 cents for
every gallon you buy. Therefore, I urge you to return the fuel tax to its 13 cents that it
had been before the raise. Now Items 10 and 11. They kind of, more or less ... you
know, they work with each other. We in the COMET organization want to applaud
Chairman Kane for recognizing the need to place some context, some control on the huge
assessment increases that are being applied by the Maui Department. .. the Maui tax
division. That kind of recognition is more that our present Mayor has been able to do.
There are a couple of blank lines on these two draft bills where a percentage amount may
be placed. I propose that you choose the words "not more than 4 percent" for those blank
lines.
MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MR. BAGDA: That would compare with what the COMET organization uses in their proposed
tax relief plan. Thank you for listening to me this day.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Bagda. Members, any questions for the testifier?
· .. Hearing none, thank you for your testimony, sir.
MR. BAGDA: You're welcome.
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CHAIR KANE: Brian Klaschka. He'll be followed by Buck Joiner.
MR. KLASCHKA: '" Budget Chair Kane, Members of the Budget Committee. My name is
Brian Klaschka, and I am testifying before you today representing Maui Economic
Opportunity... as the Transportation Director for the organization. My appearance before
you today is to request an appropriation in the amount of 400,000 dollars to purchase
identified land for the establishment of a permanent transit facility to facilitate operations
of the MEO transportation specialized bus system. The area identified is approximately
ten acres and can meet MEO's current and future needs. As the purchase will occur
during FY 206 {sic], it is important that these funds be included in the FY 206 {sic]
budget. Unfortunately, our existing transportation facility in Kahului is a temporary site
on land owned by the State, and is in a precarious at best. We have been actively
searching for a new one-stop location. We have been informed that in the not-too-distant
future, the State plans to use the land for other purposes. Relocating our transportation
base has become a major objective of MEO. MEO, Inc. remains deeply appreciative of
your support for our specialized transportation services. We had hoped either the Mayor
or the County Department of Transportation would bring this item before you. However,
as that it did not occur, it remains an important community goal that MEO transportation
facilities be consolidated and located in a permanent and secure location. We
respectfully ask that funding in the amount of 400,000 dollars be placed in the current
budget to allow the purchase of the proposed property for a permanent MEO
transportation facility. I thank you, and I do have copies for ... the Members.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Klaschka. Members, any questions? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good afternoon, Brian.
MR. KLASCHKA: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So what you're saying is that the .. .I know at one time
the proposed location for the MEO bus system was supposed to have been at the old
Puunene Airport ...which is now called the Central Maui Raceway Park. So that
particular location is not viable for MEO purposes?
MR. KLASCHKA: That is correct. The original space that had been allocated is now currently
occupied, I believe, by the armory, and the State has other plans for that location. We
have identified a Central Maui facility location. I'm not at liberty to tell you the property
owner at this time. However, it is in the Kahului area.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. I was under the assumption, looking at
the ... proposal for the particular area that MEO had ... some acres in there that was
designated for your bus system. So ... thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Ms. Johnson?

Any further questions for Mr. Klaschka?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Brian, thank you for coming. The State .. .is also, I
know, one of the big supporters for MEO. Have you also made a budget proposal to the
State as well as to the County for this land acquisition? Or is this only--'cause I am not
aware of this particular...proposal.
MR. KLASCHKA: Thank you for the question, Ms. Johnson. MEO currently has a 3 million
dollar request for a transit facility in with the State. Whether or not that will be funded
during this fiscal year is unknown at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.. .if the site--and I understand you can't really disclose
where the location is--is there any possibility that if we were to proviso, let's say
somewhere within our budget. .. some, let's say reserve of monies that we have in
whatever area, is .. .is there a possibility then that if this would fall through, that you
would be able at least, you know, to keep your project still alive and not have to use this
money? I guess what I'm trying to get at is if we proviso it and then if you don't use it or
if you don't need it, or if this deal falls through, that we wouldn't be tying it up? You
know, we could always remove the proviso. But in that event. .. you know, what would
you do, then, for trying to find another site? Would you still be continuing to work on it,
and would you still need the money there for any purchase that you would be
undertaking?
MR. KLASCHKA: In the last year and a half, transportation division has pursued six or seven
different sites. We've actually put offers in on two sites. Unsuccessfully, obviously.
And this particular site, which has been approved by the CTAA and is in Central Maui,
Kahului area, would be the most preferred site. If. .. you allocated the sum of 400,000
dollars with a proviso--if you felt you could not allocate it--to be encumbered within the
fiscal year of '06 .. .if the deal fell through, then of course we wouldn't require the
monies. We are looking at several different financial venues .. .including low-interest
loans to purchase the property. The property we're on, many of you know, off of Vevau
Street. .. that is owned by the State, we are really on a month-to-month carryover on a
fixed lease. So we have no lease at all. The repair and maintenance center for MEO
transportation is down in the harbor next to Pier 1, which his also dubious as to how long
we can be there. So we are very actively and progressively seeking a new home.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Now ...would you have any idea of when you would know
whether or not this was going to come to pass?
MR. KLASCHKA: Within the next 45 to 60 days.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much. Appreciate it.
MR. KLASCHKA: You're welcome.
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CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Klaschka?
... Hearing none, thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. KLASCHKA: Thanks, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify is Buck Joiner. He'll be followed by Tony Fisher.
MR. JOINER: ... Aloha ka kou. Buck Joiner, speaking as an individual ... {inaudible} . .. I'm
handing out ...
. . . Are those going to be handed out to the Members?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, it is.
MS. SAKAMOTO: There isn't enough copies.
MR. JOINER: Oh ...
MS. KAWASAKI: Ten copies.
CHAIR KANE: We have, we have only ten copies, I believe, given to us, Mr. Joiner. So we'll
get it-MR. JOINER: There's ten copies-CHAIR KANE: We'll get it to ...we'll get it handed out. We need to make-MR. JOINER: ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: --sure that everybody gets one, Mr. Joiner.
MR. JOINER: Yeah, that's why I brought ten copies.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, but you need to-MR. JOINER: Nine for the Members.
CHAIR KANE: --bring in 18 and that's ... that's why we ask for that in, in advance. So we'll
make the adjustment, Mr. Joiner.
MR. JOINER: Okay. Urn ... that was administrative time. Please don't charge that against me.
As you review the budget, one of the fundamental aspects is ... are we getting what we
pay for. In the case of coverage of Akaku... their, their television coverage of the County
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Council Committee meetings, board and commission meetings, I believe that the citizens
of Maui County are being double charged by Akalm. As you know, Akaku is mandated
by Federal law and is required to provide P, E, G access. In the handout that I have,
which you can't see ...there, it, you have the FCC fact sheet. And... clearly identifies
Public Educational and Government is their responsibility. The funding for this comes
from cable subscribers. This amount is approximately 800,000 dollars annually. In the
current proposed County budget, there's 232 dollars, two, 232,000 dollars earmarked for
Akaku services. That's 167 from Council Services for all Council-related TV coverage,
plus 65,000 from the Mayor's Office for boards and commissions and I am, I'm guessing,
the Mayor's call-in program is included with that. I don't know. That's a total of
232,000. And the, the ... the money for, from ... via Council Services is 742 dollars per
meeting covered, plus, times 121 meetings, plus 1,400 dollars per month equipment
charge or maintenance or whatever. Assuming in this, in... equal distribution of 800,000
that they receive from cable subscribers, 270,000 would be for government coverage.
That means over 500,000 dollars to provide government coverage. And this, this seems
unlikely. I believe that Akaku is actually holding on to 270,000. Attachment 1 to this
letter. ..which you can't have, is this FCC guidelines for PEG Community Access
television. Without specifying any... percentages on the .. . {inaudible} . .. let me issue
.. . {inaudible} . .. you have to assume an equal distribution. Attachment 2 is a letter from
the Mayor to the Akaku Board, questioning what happened to the 270,000 dollars.
Unfortunately, that letter went out after this budget was ...repaired, uh, prepared. And he
references 170,000, which was actually last year's budget.
MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MR. JOINER: Attachment 3 is a letter from Lynne Woods to the State Legislature, relative to
the Akaku distribution of cable funds for PEG Access. I would ask that in both the
Mayor's letter and Lynne Wood's letter, you pay particular attention to the second
paragraph... or excuse me, to the, to the top paragraph on second page of the handout
which you don't have. It is my opinion that the County is being charged for services that
Akaku is required to provide. As a cable subscriber, I am paying twice--to the County
and to the cable company--for this coverage. And is this double funding an accumulation
of money that is allowing Sean McLaughlin and the Board of Akaku to purchase the
shopping center at 333 Dairy Road? According to the Maui property tax records, this
property is valued at 4.4 million dollars, has over 20 businesses in that shopping center.
And it is my opinion that there is a something extremely long ...wrong when a very small
501(c)(3) organization becomes a major commercial real estate operator.
MS. KAWASAKI: Four minutes.
MR. JOINER: I ask that the County Council investigate this situation, in cooperation with the
Mayor, to determine if there is serious overcharge of the citizens by Akaku for services
that they are required to provide. I am the only person from whom you will hear this. No
other source is willing to talk about it--no employee, no Akaku employee, no board
member and no volunteer is going to talk on this for fear of retribution. So I'm the only
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person you'll hear it from. That concludes my testimony on that subject. I would like
to ... also ... put in a... a brief note .. .I had testified in earlier meetings in favor of money
being taken from the Maui Visitors Bureau for the purpose of a ...
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me-MR. JOINER: ... visitor impact study.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Mr. Joiner...we've provided you with your four minutes, and you've
gone over that time at this point. And we have only one item listed on the agenda for
today--that is Budget and Finance Item Number 1. So at this time-MR. JOINER: .. .(inaudible) . .. that's fine.
CHAIR KANE: --are there any questions for Mr. Joiner?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Hearing none, thank you for your testimony, sir.
MR. JOINER: All right.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify, we have Mr. Tony Fisher. And he'll be followed by-MR. JOINER: Could I ask an... an administrative question? Uh...what is the proper procedure
for us to bring testimony that is written and we're provide, providing that for distribution
to the Council Members? How do we accomplish that, sir?
CHAIR KANE: Members, as stated on the agenda, it's printed oral or written testimony, that
if. .. written testimony is submitted at a meeting, 18 copies are requested. And it's right
on the ... on the agenda.
. . . Good afternoon, Mr. Fisher.
MR. FISHER: Good afternoon... Council Members and Chair. My name is Tony Fisher, and I
am representing COMET ...this afternoon, and speaking on Items 7, 10, and 11. I am
most appreciative of the fact that there have been letter, that the Chair has submitted three
different proposals for helping the property tax situation her on the County of Maui.
One, dealing with moving, increasing the Homeowners exemption from 11 0 and 130 to
150. I think that's a great idea. The second and third, which are Numbers 10 and 11. .. to
limit the assessment and to limit the taxes that a homeowner will, will pay. Uh... again, I
think these are both, all three of these ideas are good. The only question that I would
bring up is that this is a bill for an ordinance to amend... the County chapter which was
submitted some time ago to Councilman...uh ... Riki Hokama. And my question is why
is this not on some agenda somewhere to consider by the full Council--which is a tax

- lO-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 21, 2005

reform, rather than what I'd call a tax diddling with idiosyncrasies of the tax structure.
And ... so I would like to request that this which has been in the, in the system since
December, that it, too, be considered by the full County Council as part of this budget
process. Which our understanding was it was going to be. So ...that was, that's all my
comment today. The other three items that you have submitted, Chair Kane, I think are,
are excellent. I think they're good ideas. And that is all I have. So I'm gonna go under
three minutes .. . (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE:
Thank you, Mr. Fisher.
Ms. Anderson?

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Mr. Fisher. Urn... could you resubmit that ordinance
today? Do you have an extra copy that-MR. FISHER: I sure do.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --you could leave with the Committee Secretary?
MR. FISHER: In fact, I have the .. .I knew you were gonna ask that. No, I didn't really.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. . {laughter} . ..
MR. FISHER: But I, in fact I do have ... a it's on five pages, and I brought them ... enough here
so that you can, it's easier to Xerox if they're all on... you know, consecutive pages than
front and back. And I have that. And I would be ... delighted to do that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. FISHER: --today.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. FISHER: And this, by the way, is the ... Corporation Counsel's copy...which they took the
copy that I made up and redid it so that it met the ...the form of the County Council. And
I thank you for your consideration. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Any further questions for the testifier?
MR. FISHER: ... Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you very much. And just as a note, Ms. Anderson, we do
have it in the budget binder, this particular ordinance. And so we'll see if we can provide
assistance to your office to get a copy of that.

- 11 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 21, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I actually have a copy of it, but I, I think that he wanted it
to be considered as part of this budget deliberation--which is why I asked him to submit
it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Is there anybody else here in the Chamber that has not testified that
would like to testify? Now is your opportunity to do so .
. . . And seeing that nobody else is approaching, Members, without objections, we're
gonna close public testimony for this afternoon's meeting. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. We'll go ahead and close testimony.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, time now is a little bit after 2 o'clock. The Chair is gonna call for a
brief recess. And then we'll go ahead and reconvene and ...the Chair will provide some
opening comments to this afternoon's meeting. We are in recess till. .. 2:15. 2:15. This
Committee is in recess .. . (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

2:02 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:40 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. All right, Members, we are reconvened. And this is the
April 21 st, 2005 ...Budget and Finance Committee meeting. Members, thank you for that
extended...recess. We wanted to make sure that we had all. ..proper documents in order
and available to you. Just first, before we start with any opening comments, I wanted to
note in one of the handouts, your main exhibit of the ... of the working sheet, there are a
couple of things that we apologize for and we'll make sure that in every future
drafts ... that we'll first number the items, as well as date the document. And we
apologize, but trying to get it up here to us ... we wanted to make sure that we got
these ... these figures to you. So for, for that, the Chair apologizes. We'll make that
necessary correction. You should have a total of three handouts from, from us.
The ... the Exhibit 1, as well as a chart and the opening comments. And, Members, at this
time, the Chair would like to reference the April 21 s\ 2005 memo to the Members of the
Budget and Finance Committee. Members .. .I would like to first. .. take this time to
sincerely thank all of you for your diligent work in reviewing the proposed budget for the
Fiscal Year 2006. And as we near the start of our... deliberations, I would like to reflect
upon the challenges ...that the Budget and Finance Committee faced upon receiving the
Mayor's budget proposal on March 15. It quickly became apparent that this Committee
was faced with the daunting task of analyzing each request to ensure that the Budget
provided ... (cleared throat) . .. excuse me, the services our community needed within
the resources our County can provide. This task was further complicated by the
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numerous inconsistencies between the proposed budget ordinances, program budget
booklet, budget details, and verbal statements and requests made by the various
departments. And surprisingly, the Administration has continued to submit
"inadvertently omitted" proposed appropriations until late this morning. I realize that this
unfortunate situation has made it extremely challenging at times to discuss the projects
and proposals that were not supported by any written documentation, as well determine
which proposals were supported by the departments. As a result, I thank you for your
tenacity, your determination, and patience throughout this process. Now in order to
provide for a starting point for our deliberations, I have prepared a proposal for your
review. This proposal identifies three main areas .. .(end of tape, start lB) ... of
concern. These areas of concern are: first, real property tax relief for homeowners;
second, reduction of proposed projects to be funded by bond proceeds; and third, support
for County core services.
For the first item, real property tax relief for homeowners, the booming real estate market
and the upward surge in prices have had a dramatic impact on real property assessments
here in Maui County. This impact directly affects each and every homeowner in the form
of increased property taxes. In his proposal, the Mayor attempted to address this problem
by adjusting Homeowner tax rates from 3.55 dollars per 1,000 dollars of assessed
valuation, to 3 dollars per 1,000 dollars of assessed valuation. However, further analysis
has revealed that this proposal would provide for significantly less tax relief to
homeowners with lower property values than homeowners with higher property values.
Under the Mayor's proposal, property valued at 400,000 dollars in Fiscal Year 2005
would experience a real property tax increase of 14.58 percent. Properties valued at
1 million or more would realize a real property tax increase of just 9 percent. I feel this
proposal unfairly impacts the homeowner of a median priced home--it is this homeowner
that needs more tax relief. As a result, I am proposing an alternate means to address real
property tax relief for homeowners. I propose to increase the Homeowner's exemption to
190,000 dollars, and reducing the tax rate to 3.50 dollars per 1,000 dollars of assessed
valuation. By doing so, homeowners will experience an increase in their real property tax
bills, but for a 400,000 dollar home, the increase will be 6.48 percent; and for homes
valued at a million or more, the increase will result in a 18.31 percent hike. And
Members, again, I note this attached chart that will demonstrate the example that has just
been cited. I'm seriously concerned with the drastic increase in proposed projects to be
funded by bond funds. In the past, the Department. .. of Finance has indicated that an
acceptable amount of new bond issuance is between 15 and 20 million per fiscal year. In
response to this concern, I propose to eliminate the Mayor's proposed acquisition of One
Main Plaza for 15 million dollars to be funded by way of bond proceeds. Bond debt is
not the only reason I am proposing the deletion of One Main Plaza building acquisition.
Until the March 2017 option to purchase materializes, the County is only able to lease the
land. While the purchase of One Main Plaza would provide much needed County office
space, the acquisition of the building would require the County to not only borrow a large
sum of money, it would also include steep cuts, uh, steep costs associated with
renovations and maintenance. The engineering report conducted on One Main Plaza
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reveals that this is a building that is in dire need of numerous immediate repairs. I feel
that it would be in the County's best interest to focus its efforts on acquiring the Old Post
Office site located adjacent to the Kalana 0 Maui building as the site for future County
office space. While this task will take longer than the immediate acquisition of One Main
Plaza, I believe that the long-term benefits to the County will be worth the additional time
and effort. This site is in closer proximity to the Kalana 0 Maui and Kalana Pakui
buildings and will help to create a "County campus" type atmosphere which will be of
tremendous benefit to the public who is regularly shuttled between departments in order
to conduct their business. In addition, property the County already owns such as the
Kaohu Street County employees' parking lot should be a priority in the future planning
and design of developing a County campus.
The Committee discussions held during the months of March and April solidified the
notion that we support the funding of core, County core services in various departments.
As such, I am proposing a 1.37 million dollar appropriation to support the continuation of
County automated refuse collection service. This program has proven to increase
efficiency, has shown to aid in the prevention of injuries to County employees, provides a
much needed service to the public, and is an overall benefit to our County.
On the other hand, I cannot support funding projects that will clearly be the
responsibility of the State. And for this reason, I have eliminated the proposed 2 million
appropriation to Maui Community College for the purpose of expanding into a four-year
college. Personally, I feel strongly that our County needs higher learning options in
order to provide better opportunities for our children to advance their education and
remain in Maui County to live and work. However, as an elected official charged with
the fiscal responsibilities of this County, I feel that approving such funding without the
full intention of support from the State would not be a wise decision. The State is also
not focused on improvements of, to Wells Park, and as such, I am opposing, proposing a
deletion of the proposed appropriation of 950,000 dollars for this project. I support an
increase in sewer rates; however, I am proposing an 11 percent increase rather than a
17 percent increase. Through the years, the Council has indicated to the Administration
that it wishes to see self-sufficient sewer services. In order to accomplish this goal, we
all realize that sewer rates will continue to increase. I am proposing that the increase be
lowered in Fiscal Year 2006 to accommodate a more even application of rate increases
over the next few years. While I continue to experience serious misgivings about the
functions of the Department of Water Supply, I recognize the dismal history of water rate
increases. As a result, I am supporting the full 12 percent proposed water rate increases.
I feel that too few capital improvement cycles have passed since this Department was
returned to the County to accurately predict whether they are able to complete their
proposed projects. They have always argued that their inability to adequately service the
public was a result of a lack of funds, and this lack of funds has been blamed on the
Council's unwillingness to implement water rate increases to generate revenue for the
Department. I propose that we provide them with the funds they have requested and say
to them that they will no longer have this crutch to lean on. They are being given the
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tools they have requested to do their job, and the Council, and more importantly, the
public will now expect results.
I support the use of County funds to, spent on maximizing government efficiency to
provide improved service to the public. We recognize the need to fund the nine radio
dispatcher vacancies in the Department of Police. By doing so, we address County and
community liability. Overall, I propose to reduce the Mayor's EIP request of 58 positions
by 7, and will instead support funding to increase the following.
First,3 safety positions in the Department of Parks and Recreation, Department of Police,
and Department of Public Works and Environmental Management--upon the
recommendation from the Risk Manager.
Second, 2 positions in the Department of Plarming--specifically, for a full-time Historic
Preservation Officer in Lahaina and a planner on Molokai, as requested by the Molokai
Planning Commission and supported by the Department of Plarming. Three, 2 positions
for the Abandoned Vehicle program to address the Mayor's erroneous omission. I
propose to fund positions for a period of 6 months rather than 8 months due to
Administration's past inability to fill these positions in a timely marmer. I am proposing
to transfer... the transfer, or transfer, excuse me, of 1.3 million dollars in Highway Funds
from the Department of Transportation to the General Fund to offset a proposed fuel tax
reduction of 2 cents per gallon. I feel that the current fuel crisis justifies this adjustment
and will provide some much needed relief to our citizens. Absent a plan from the
Department of Plarming, I am proposing that 1 million be deleted for the proposed
Wailuku Parking Garage project. This is, it is my belief that the Maui Redevelopment
Agency should wean itself from the Department of Planning. I propose that we should
provide them with an appropriation of 50,000 dollars for an Interim Manager and support
staff as the Council has done in the past. The Mayor has proposed a large increase for the
manage, Animal Management Program. In light of this large increase and our increasing
exposure to liability, I feel it is important to condition the release of the funds for the
Maui Humane Society with a requirement that their Animal Control Officers successfully
complete constitutional law, search and seizure, and other related training courses. I also
propose a proviso eliminating the possibility of the purchase of TASER guns by the Maui
Humane Society with County funds.
I am further proposing that 75,000 dollars be appropriated for the first year of the Na Wai
Eha Stream studies. This 3Yz-year study will assess the effects of surface-water
diversions of the Waikapu, lao, and Waiehu streams, and the Waihee River, providing
beneficial data to establish standards for the allocation of stream water in these water
systems, and ultimately benefiting our County's water resources.
Various other adjustments to the Mayor's proposed budget, including requests from
Committee members that appeared to have consensus, will be found in the attached
spreadsheet. Members, I believe that this proposal addresses some of the main budgetary
concerns for Fiscal Year 2006--real property tax relief for homeowners; reduction of
- 15 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

April 21, 2005

proposed projects to be funded by bond proceeds; and the support for County core
services. This approach ensures that the utilization of County revenue is maximized to
provide for the County's immediate needs, without placing the County in unnecessary
financial jeopardy. I believe that this is a sound starting point to achieve the common
goal of providing for needed facilities, programs, and services for the betterment of our
County. Members ... at this time ...the Chair, again, wants to thank you for the efforts
that we've ...
· . . taken upon us up to this point. And, of course, now is where we begin the actual
deliberations. It is the Chair's intent, Members, that ...
· .. tomorrow morning at 9 0' clock, from now until tomorrow morning, the Chair would
like to suggest--and it's only a suggestion--that Members take... take their time to look
through the Exhibit that provides in detail the breakdown of the Mayor's proposal, the
revisions, and the proposal of the Budget Chair. Uh...take some, take note of what
changes were made and allow yourself time to prepare for any additional revisions that
you'd like to have addressed by this body. The Chair's intent was not to get into any sort
of deliberative action this afternoon because I know there's a lot for you to see here, on
what direction we're taking. And I'd like to take the opportunity to provide that chance
for you to ... as we should say, absorb or take in what, what proposals we have before us.
Again, I'd like to also reiterate and thank you all, Members, I think all of you have
provided some of your recommendations or, or wish lists, if you will. And the Chair has
done his best in attempting to accommodate those requests within the...proposed budget
by the Chair of... your Committee. At this time, the Chair is more than happy to open it
up for any questions or comments. Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, would you go through the example that you had
as the attachment for the real property tax examples?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Member Tavares. Members, if you look at the real
property tax examples, which was cited in the opening comments, what you'll see is at
the top of the page that says "assessment" under '05, Fiscal Year '05, the number of
400,000 dollars. From.. .I believe, some written remarks from the Administration, we
were told that there was a 20, average 25.8 percent increase in assessed values. And so
using that figure .. .if you keep on going across, an assessment under the Mayor's
proposal, the FY '06 column, you would see a number of 503,200 dollars. That 5032
represents the increase of assessed valuation of a property that during this year was 400,
has increased to 503,000 dollars. Now you'll see the numbers underneath--the 110,000
dollars that represents the current Homeowner's exemption rate that. . .is utilized to
provide relief for the homeowner. So under that is the adjusted amount.
· .. The tax rate bill you'll see under '05 currently is $3.55. The Mayor's proposal is to
reduce it down to 3 dollars. The tax bill number. .. the increase in tax bill ...the dollar
amount, and the percentage increase of 14.58 percent. The Chair's proposal will reflect
the same factors ... except making the adjustment to the Homeowners exemption, which
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is from 110 to 190,000 dollars. You will see the tax rate adjustment, which was reduced
from this year from 3.55 down to 3.50. And you will see the numbers that will correlate
that that person with a home assessed this year would be projected to only have a 6.48
percent increase in their tax bill. Now if you go to the second area, the one in the bottom,
this represents the higher-end assessment home value. If you're looking at the
assessment, again we applied the same ... other factors, except now we've changed the
400,000 home to a million-dollar-home for '05. If you look at the '06 Mayor's proposal,
that number, you'll see the 25.8 percent average increase. With the 110,000 dollar
Homeowner rate [sic] . .. that homeowner would look at a 9 percent increase in their
property tax bill. In the Chair's proposal, you'll notice that two numbers were changed.
The first one being the Homeowner's exemption... as to 190, and the tax rate is reduced
from 3.55 down to 3.50. And you'll notice that the higher-end person will now pay a
higher percentage ... than the Mayor's proposal. Members, and this, this is what this
document reflects-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --that the Chair's intent was to help the lower-end person, the median and
lower-end person... and as it gets higher and higher, we have the higher-end person
paying a little bit more. And that's what this rep ... uh, reflects. Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you for that explanation, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions or comments? And, again, the Chair's intent
is not to get into type of deliberations, but for clarity. And I'll take real quick note,
Members, just to point out some general areas on your Exhibit.
· .. One thing that I did not mention that I'd like to note at this point is, right on your first
page, you'll notice there has been an additional change to the FY rates. And that the
Chair is proposing a Time Share rate of $12.30 per thousand. So there is an adjustment
from the 16 dollars that the Mayor has proposed, to $12.30 ...which represents
approximately 4 dollars over the current rate of $8.30 per thousand at the Hotel rate.
Some other notes, Members, that I'd like to point out from the Mayor's March 15 th
proposal. Located on Page 2--you'1l notice that the reduction in overall revenues .. .is
12.7 million dollars.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... On Page 17 ...
· .. there was a reduction in operations of approximately 2.7 million dollars.
· .. And in... capital improvement, there is a overall reduction of 10 million dollars. And
finally, there is a reduction of bond of approximately 12.5 million dollars. So, again, the
effort has been to ... attempt to make some reductions and still provide as much
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relief...to the homeowner as possible. Again, the Chair realizes, Members, that this is a
starting point for us. I ask you to please take that time to look over the proposal. .. and
I'd like to, again, open it up ifthere's an... clarification needed before the Chair intends
to ... wrap it up for this afternoon and open up tomorrow morning. The Chair will open
the floor. Further comments or questions? Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have a question that probably doesn't need to be answered
right now. Urn ... do you have in mind a bond total that you think is appropriate for us to
aim towards as we look at the CIP projects? And I guess it doesn't have to be answered
now because CIP will be, probably, one of the last areas we get to. But if you have some
idea of what you are recommending to us as what the ...the total amount should not
exceed as far as ...what's ... gonna be covered by a bond issuance?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for the question, and I'll, I'll answer more in a general term and a
range that the ...that the Chair. .. as you, as you may have noted in my opening remarks,
we have .. .in years past, been recognizing or attempting to stay between the 15 and
20 million dollar mark. Urn ...however, realizing that this County is growing--whether
it's population or it's the services that are being demanded and the facilities that
are ...that are needed to accommodate the services--the Chair is ...hoping that we keep it
in the mid-20 range, whether it's 28, 27, 26, 25, 24. But somewhere in that range.
Urn... going much higher than that, I think, places ... some challenges for us over a long
period of time. So the Chair is trying to keep it. . .in the 20 million dollar range.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair, does that also include the CIP projects for the Water
Department?
... In that range?

CHAIR KANE: Thank you for that question. I'll, I'll yield to Ms. Koller-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --for a better response. Ms. Koller?
MS. KOLLER: Well, thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe in the past the ...when this question was,
was raised, that the bond rating agencies look at the Water Department as slightly
different because they're self-sufficient. And so we're looking at the General Fund
dollars ... (inaudible) . .. and, and the other...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, the .. (inaudible) . .. parks.
MS. KOLLER: --the other projects. Right. So it would not include the-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
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MS. KOLLER: And in, in fact this year there is no bond...projects for the Water Department.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other questions at this time, Members?
... Lot to absorb.
'" Before we ...
. . . adjourn, Members, I wanted to take note that we have received additional. .. as I also
noted in our, in the opening comments, we had received additional comments ... from
various departments. And that will be, is being handed out now. So please take into
consideration these recent handouts as well as the others that we've received throughout
the process in helping us to come to a decision on our... on our budget proposal.
Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry, I have so many questions.
CHAIR KANE: No problem. Please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (laughter) . .. You know, we just got this and I'm just
generally--the proposal that came down with the Mayor's certification requesting funds
for various projects, is that reflected in, in your proposal for discussion or... some are and
some aren't? What, do you know which ones?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And I believe we have recognized the vast majority of them.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And that's a general comment. I think we have recognized, as an example, for
operations for the-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --for the Abandoned Vehic1e-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --which is, I think, one of the primary-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --components, that was recognized. As well as a few others that have been
recognized-- 19 -
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, I'll, when I go through it, I'll make note of it. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: And please, Members, if there isn't something that's there that you folks wish
to have ...put on the table, when we start tomorrow, that's gonna be in, the intent--is to,
to recognize and try to leave no stone left .. .{laughter} . .. untumed on... and then
eventually working towards consensus on those. So .. .if you recognize something that's
not there or is there that you have a concern... that's what we're gonna attempt to ...to
work through once we get to tomorrow morning's start time. Any further questions or
comments, Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Members, the Chair's intention is to adjourn this meeting for
this afternoon. Provide you that necessary time, and we can start up tomorrow morning
at 9 a.m. Without seeing any further questions or comments, Members... this meeting
for April 21 st, 2005 is adjourned. We'll see you in the morning .. .{gavel} . . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

3:07 p.m.
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